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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF A-ONE GOLD PIPES & TUBES PRIAVTE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of A-ONE GOLD PIPES & TUBES
PRIAVTE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of Material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (*the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, the loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
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other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 1&5‘%%@%’@%’?'%% knowledge

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
necessary actions, as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Managements and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Com pany and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of directors and management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Board of directors and management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud rﬁé\’f“ih@&#@ceéﬁﬁgion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were audited by
another firm of Chartered Accountants under the Act, who, vide their report dated August 28,
2024, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the
backup of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic
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mode has been kept on servers physicalIy“'1"|'3'i‘:‘g{égdr“'(ljr".m%dia on a
periodical/incremental basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2() below of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e, On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(j) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

g. In respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B of this report.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its
financial position.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, as disclosed in the Note no 62 to the Financial Statements no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall

. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note no 63 to the Financial Statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall:
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. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persdﬁgr‘a'r‘wé?ﬁijfﬁgsh(igghtiﬁed in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding
Party or

. provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any material mis-
statement.

i.  Nodividend has been declared, authorized, or distributed by the Company in respect
of the current financial year.

J. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, we found that the
audit trail at the database level is editable.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the entire period from April 1, 2023 except that
the audit trail retention at the database level is available only from April 12, 2023, and
at the application level only from October 2023.

k. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company being a private limited company which is a subsidiary of a public company,
is covered under the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013. However, the company has not paid any remuneration to its
directors during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197(16) regarding
compliance with limits of managerial remuneration are not applicable for the current
year.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 302049E)

Partner

(Membership No. 077508)
UDIN: 25077508BMOVZU6658
Place:Bengaluru
Date:01/08/2025
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of A-ONE GOLD PIPES & TUBES PRIAVTE LIMITED
of even date)

)

Offices : Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi, Bangalore, Chennai & Raipur

a) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment.

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property plant and equipment;

B. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme
of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all Property,
Plant and Equipment are verified annually. Inour opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. NoO discrepancies noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records

examined by us, the tittle deeds of all the immovable properties (Other than
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreement are duly
executed in favor of lessee) are held in the name of company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, the Company has not revalued its property plant and equipment
(Including Right-of-Asset) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have
been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding penami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in
2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and
Rules made there under, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether
the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements
does not arise.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Physical verification of the inventory
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(excluding material in transit) has been carried 'out by { € management at

reasonable intervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management are appropriate. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there were no material discrepancy of 10% or more in the
aggregate of each class of inventory.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores

in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. The discrepancies, if any, between the
books of accounts and the quarterly return/statements filed with such bank and
financial institutions have been disclosed below:

#28, R.V. Layout, V. S. Raju Road,
Palace Guttahalli, Near BDA Head Office,
Kumara Park West, Bangalore-560 020

Offices : Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi, Bangalore, Chennai & Raipur

() The differences are on account of statement filed with the banks prepared
based on provisional basis and regrouping of various ledgers.

(if) - While arriving the drawing power the creditors are adjusted from bank balances
available as on respective quarters and net debtors submitted to bank after
excluding more than 90 days.

(iii) The Company has a practice of submitting net position of debtors,advances to
suppliers,inventory and deducting creditors,advance from customers. Therefore for
comparing with the books of accounts the same practice has been followed to arrive
at the net position though there is a change in classification in the financial
statements.

iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
investments, security or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties (except employees)

Aogregae |, e
5 | Amennt «< | reported in LS e
: working | - | Amountas | " Amniit ¢ | Reasons for
, g . R el the | Amount o] Pl 53
Quarter capital per books e R | material
A of account | Quarterly | difference =R =5
Nimits o AT ofaccount | "~ . discrepancies
barm SRR quarter: - | return/.
.sar_;c_l_:l_qn__e_q_. : A e T e i i
June 2024 2,000.00 1,763.81 7,507.71 7,572.47 (64.76) Refer Notes
September 2024 Refer Notes
2,000.00 1,895.91 9,232.40 9,334.53 (102.13)
December 2024 Refer Notes
2,000.00 1,915.16 7,399.42 7,446.14 (46.72)
March 2025 Refer Notes
2,000.00 1,001.85 3,739.15 3,613.11 126.04
L .
Notes:
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and has stood guarantee during the year. The compan

to its employees during the year.

a) The aggregate amount durin
sheet date with respect to such loans and

below:
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y has gra’n!tecf unsecured loans

g the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
guarantees are as per the table given

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

-
Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
nature of
loans
Aggregate amount granted /
provided during the year:
- Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Joint Ventures NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Associates NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Other (loan to employees) NIL NIL NIL 39.75
- Other Companies
30.19 NIL NIL NIL
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:
- Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Joint Ventures NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Associates NIL NIL NIL NIL
h .
Chittor et abiss 30.19 NIL NIL NIL

b) In respect of the aforesaid guarantees and advances, the terms and conditions
under which such guarantees and advances were granted are not prejudicial to
the company’s interest, based on the information and explanation provided by the

company

c) Based on the explanation and information given to us and based on the
examination of available records in respect of the loans, the schedule of
repayment of principal and interest has been stipulated in the loan agreements.
Further, the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been regular as
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per the terms of the agreement during the period. THE loAGIEh 4 employees is
interest free as per company policy.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, there are no amounts of loans and advances in the
nature of loans granted to companies, which are overdue for more than ninety
days. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(d) of the order is not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not renewed or extended or fresh
loans given to settle to over dues of existing loans given to the same party is not
applicable to the company. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly,
clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or
provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company,
in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted deposits other than those in the normal course of business,
hence the provision of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under; Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in
respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii)

a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of
excise and Value added tax during the year effective 1 July 2017, these statutory
dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income-tax,
goods and service tax and other material statutory dues have been regularly
deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
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procedures performed by us, no undisputed amoun‘i‘é“!ﬁégfgﬁgﬁ#%gﬁem of these

statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
due as referred to in sub clause (a), which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute. Accordingly, Clause 3(vii)(b) of order is not applicable.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

ix)

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender from whom the loan is borrowed during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared
a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any government authority.

¢) Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long term purposes by the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act,
2013.Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

f)  According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on the
examination of financial statements, the Company is not having any subsidiary or
Joint venture or associate companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable.

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Hence reporting under
clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable

Xi)

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
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and according to the information and explanations given {6 us, we have neither

come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case
by the Management.

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, no report
under 143(12) of the Act in form ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, has been filed with the Central
Government.

¢) Inour opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are
no whistle blower complaints received during the year.

xii)  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements, as required by the Indian accounting standards.

Xiv) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by
us.

xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the
provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Xvi)

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Hence a Certificate of Registration (CoR) is not required as per Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
there are no Core Investment Company part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company..

xvii) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the
company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs.1,746.68 lakhs during the financial
year and incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year amounting
Rs.754.94 lakhs.
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xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios(Note No 48), ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
(Note No 52) and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

xx) As the company does not meet the eligible criteria as specified under section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been
included in this report

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Membership No. 077508)
UDIN: 25077508BMOVZU6658
Place: Bengaluru

Date :01/08/2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of A-ONE GOLD PIPES & TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of A-ONE GOLD PIPES
& TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (1CAI'". These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
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statements was established and maintained and if such contro sl‘o‘ﬁie’!?e{{ég {é#}éctwely in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
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financial reporting with reference to these financial statements 10 futiire eriods are subject to

the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with respect to these financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SINGHI & CO.,,
Chartered Accountants e
Firm Registration No. 302049E N & C

Membership No. 077508
UDIN:25077508BMOVZUB658
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 01/08/2025

Offices : Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi, Bangalore, Chennai & Raipur



Assets
Men-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital wark-in-progress
Right-of-use assets
Other Intangible Assets
Financial assets
Investments
Cther financial assets
(Other non-current assets
Total Non-current Assets

Current assets
Invantories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assats
Current tax assets (net)
(Other currant assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total Equity

Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrawings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
total outstanding dues of creditors ether than micro enterprises and small enterprises.
Pravisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current labilities
Total Non Current Liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
total tanding dues of micro and small prises; and
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises.
Cither financial liabilities
‘Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Material Accounting Policies

Notes to the Financial Statemants

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Audit report of even date.

For Singhi & Co
Charterad Accountants
ICAI FRN: 302049E

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 07/08/2025

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
{CIN: U27200KAZ020PTCT39870)
A One House No.326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar, B

ka, India, 560092

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Al amaunts are in T Lacs, unless stated atherwisal

DIM: 02150846

MNote

o on s w

-

18

20
21

23
24
25

26
27
28

29

3

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

8,999.25 9,146.40
31355 104.20
96.71 207
646 9.92
196.00 156.00
9228 39.53
3407 284.38
9,738.32 9,783.00
824776 6,389.44
455335 193963
1532 1354
47585 20347
517 170
254.06 013
10163 8484
3,851.66 3,829.76
17.504.84 12,462.51
27.243.16 22,245.51
s
5.00 5.00
{4.814.01) (2,076.45)
(4,809,01) tzmusq
871354 556118
8205 104
563836 -
19.60 1343
548.57 44136
2,591.59 T16.05
17,594.71 5,793.07
1,036.90 238511
1626 134
15.04 254
10,242.75 14,796.63
128925 B0.99
i 957.12 25716
* 0.2 013
14,457.45 17,523.90
32,052.16 24,316.96
27.243.16 22,245.52°

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
{CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
A One House Ne.326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore, B furu, K ka, India, 560092

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 11, 2025
(AN amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
| Revenue from operations Er] 36,869.25 43.283.77
Government Grants 33 40.25 -
Other income 34 358,73 203.57
Total Income 37,288.27 43,487.34
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 35 39,574.89 4270165
Changes in inventories of Finished goods and by Products 36 (4,042.14) 633.28)
|Employee benefit expense ' 7 39564 26593
Finance costs 38 1,510.45 730.75
Depreciation and amortisation expense 39 639.51 527.87
Other expenses 40 1,843.61 1,226.09
Total Expenses 39,921.96 44,819.01
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (2,633.69) (1,331.67)
Less: Exceptional items - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (2,633.69) (1.331.67)
Tax expenses
Current tax = =
Deferrad tax charge/(benefit) 47 106.84 219.77
Total Tax Expenses 106.84 219.77
Loss for the period (2,740.53) {1,551.44)
Other cun-!prehamiva income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 425 {0.44)
- Income tax relating to these items (1.07) -
318 (0.44)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss E 5
Total comprehensive i /(lass) for the period (2,737.35) (1,551.88)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Absolute Number) 41 (5.481.06) (3,102.88)
Material Accounting Policies 1-2
MNotes to the Financial Statements 3-68

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Balance Sheat referred to in our Audit report of even date.

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants /
ICAI FRN: 302049E ( =

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: (1/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
{CIN: U27200KAZ020PTC139870)
A One House No.326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Magar, B: I

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Al amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash g i from operating
Provision for employee benefits

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Allewances for credit losses on trade receivables

Interest income

Finance costs

Operating profit before change in non-current/current assets and liabilities

Adj for (i fd in operating assets
Inventaries

Trade Receivables

Loans

Other financial assets

Other nan-financial assets

lj for i fid in ing liabiliti
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Other nan-financial liabilities

Interest Income

Cash generated from/{used in) operations
Less: Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities {A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Fayments for purchase of PPE, intangible assets and CWIP

Sale of PPE
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Met {increasel/d in t ts

Interest income
Mzt cash flow from investing activities (B}

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowings

Proceeds from Barrowings

Write back of Dividend

Payment of lease liabilities

Payment of interest towards lease liability
Finance cost paid

Met cash inflow from/(used in) financing activities (C)
MNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+ u+q;

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period »
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the pericd

K ka, India, 560092
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
12,633.69) 1,33167)
1045 8.49
63951 52787
25175 9.02
1358.73) (203.57)
151045 730.75
{580.25) (259.100)
(1,858.32) (3,557.70)
(2,865.47) 144.29
347} 032
1305.85) 463.09
(25.30) [995.73)
257961 729181
725 5.15
21007 182.76)
498
(2,836,75) 2,91453
16.79 3831
(2.853.54) 2,876.22
(350.81) {1.799.31)
14.00
(272.42) (15.37)
- B4.00
27.90 1185
(531.33) 1,718.73)]
3,781.32) [568.91)
B8,270.00
(0.20) =
(4,85} (1.23)
(2.23) 0.27)
1,044.77) {577.39)
3.436.65 (1,147.80)]
178 ) 9.69
13.54 = 385
15.32 13.54




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
{CIN: U27200KAZ020PTCT39870)
A One House No.326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No., 08, Sahakar Nagar, galore, B I K taka, India, 560092

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in¥ Lacs, unfess stated otherwise]

...Continued from previous page

Notes to Statemaent of cash flows:

{i) Components of cash and bank balances (refer note 12 and13) As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 1532 1354
Other barik balances 475.89 20347
Cash and bank balances at end of the period 491.21 217.01

(i} Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Nen-current borrowings Current borrowings

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Balance as at April 1, 2024 5561.18 238511
Met Cash flows during the period 3,836.83 651,79
Adjustment for pracessing fee 82.08 -
Other non-cash changes a4 -
Reclassification of Deferred Portion Borrowings to Other Currant Liabilities BiT.81

Balance as at March 31, 2025 8,713.54 3,035.90

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Balance as at April 1, 2023 575423 2,484 46
Met Cash flows during the year (40.65) [99.35)
Adjustment for processing faa 0.68 -
Other non-cash changes (153.08] -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,561.18 2,385.11

There are no non-cash changes on account of effect of changes in foreign exchange rates and fair values.

(iii) The above Cash Flow has been prepared in dance with the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash Flow Staternents” specified under
Section 133 of the Campanies Act, 2013,

(iv) The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes 1 te 63,

Material Accounting Policies
Notes to the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This Is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Audit report of even date.

For Singhi & Co

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
A One House No.326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560092
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital

Balance as at March 31, 2024 5.00
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5.00

B. Other equity

Particulars Reta{ned Total
earnings

Balance as at March 31, 2023 (524.57) (524.57)
Profit for the year {1,551.44) (1,551.44)
Other comprehensive income (0.44) (0.44)
Tax impact on above - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (2,076.45) (2,076.45)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (2,076.45) {2,076.45)
Profit for the year (2,740.53) (2,740.53)
Others (0.20) (0.20)
Other comprehensive income 425 425
Tax impact on above (1.07) (1.07)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (4,814.00) {4,814.00)
Material Accounting Policies 1-2
Motes to the Financial Statements 3-68
The above st of changes in equity should be read in conjuction with thg \gying notes

T 3

This is Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our Audit report of ey
/e

}e Board of Directors of
nd{Tubes Private Limited

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 302049E

DIN: 02150846

Membership No.: 077508

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Company Overview:

1. A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited is a private limited company domiciled in India, with its registered
office situated at A One House No. 326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar,
Bangalore — 560092. The Company was incorporated on October 16, 2020. The Company is engaged in
manufacturing, processing and trading of Pipes, Iron & Steel including Ingots.

2. Material Accounting Policies
(i Statement of compliance:

The material accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial statements are
listed below. These policies have been applied consistently by the Company for all the periods presented in these
financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

These Standalone financial statements (“the Financial Stafements”} have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on August 1, 2025.

(ii) (A) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of
certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
(ii) (B) Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with the
Company’s normal operating cycle, which is based on the nature of business and the time elapsed between

deployment of resources and the realisation of cash and cash equivalents. The company has considered an

operating cycle of 12 months.

(ii) (C) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.



A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(ii) (D) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items ' Basis of measurement
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability/asset Present value of defined benefit obligation less fair

value of plan asset
(i) (E) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related

disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Significant management judgements:

¢ Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

¢ Business model assessment - The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups
of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers
of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and
accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made. _

e Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

e Classification of leases — Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period
of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.
In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to the Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the
Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contract.



A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(i)

Expected credit loss (ECL) — The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes
significant judgements regarding the following while assessing expected credit loss:

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk

= Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL

= Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities — At each Balance Sheet date, based on the management judgment,
changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding
contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual
values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence

that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Retirement benefit obligations - The Company’s retirement benefit obligations are subject to a number of
assumptions including discount rates, inflation, salary growth and mortality rate. Significant assumptions are
required when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact on the
amount recorded in the Company's balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sets these
assumptions based on previous experience and third-party actuarial advice. The assumptions are reviewed

annually and adjusted following actuarial and experience changes.

Revenue

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning revenue earned from
contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, using

a five-step model.
Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount that
reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any
taxes/duties and discounts.



A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:
a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs; or
b. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or )
c. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export sales
is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Company recognises provision
for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale.

Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract
inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each
reporting period.

Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers.
Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between
the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less.

Contract balances:

Trade Receivables and Contract Assets - i

A trade receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to a customer and consideration becomes
unconditional. Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is
conditional other than the passage of time.

Contract liabilities:

Contract liabilities are Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has
already received consideration. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the company satisfies its
performance obligation under the contract.

Other operating income

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and
conditions attached to the benefits are satisfied.
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(iitf) Other income

(iv)

Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Commission income

Commission income are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss only when the relevant services have been
rendered.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the
related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term employee benefits:
Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a
predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The
Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for
contribution to defined contribution plan are recogriised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit
and loss in the period during which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments
to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount
equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity is accounted for
on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past
service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be
settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change
in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The
Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
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(v)

that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
value of any plan assets.

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of
3 defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other mg;temlbgngiits;_Cgmp&nﬁted_ahsgnsg:

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The liability
in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Tax expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time
of the transaction;

. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit



A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(vi)

(vii)

may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Inventories

Inventories comprise the followings:
a) Raw materials,

b) Work-in-progress,

c) Finished and semi-finished goods
d) Stock-in-trade, and

e) Stores and spares.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is
made on an item by item basis. Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred
in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined using first in, first out
method of inventory valuation.

Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management's estimate based on demand

and market of the inventories.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

(viii) Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets

Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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(ix)

Contingent liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
not a contingent asset and is recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, in financial statements, where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)
: i l

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost (or) deemed cost applied on transition to
Ind AS less depreciation and impairment. Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which includes capitalised
borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalized as part of cost of qualifying asset.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as sepdrate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Advance given towards acquisition (or) construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under “Other Non-current assets”.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
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(x)

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value
over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of the Act.

The useful lives of the assets are as under:

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Tangible assets:

Land Not depreciable asset
Factory sheds and building 30 & 60 years

Plant and equipment 15 & 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipments 3 &5 years

Vehicles 8 & 10 years

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives
as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on
addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for
intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date
of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively.

Leases
As lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
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months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain
lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less
any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will

exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated. '
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
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After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

(xii) Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received. Where the monetary grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as income and is allocated to Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.

(xiii) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(xiv) Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are
immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Trade receivables that-do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

. ial
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
e amortised cost,
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or
e Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:
o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and
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e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCl (designated as FVOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

In order to meet the requirements of the Electricity Act 2003 and the Electricity Rules 2005 regarding
consumption of Electricity in captive generating plants, the Company enters into exchange barter transactions
by either selling or purchasing equity shares between group companies. The Company has opted to recognize
and classify such financial assets as Financial Assets through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) in the
financial statements. Considering the fact that these are intra-group transactions entered into only to meet
regulatory requirements, the Company measures these assets at cost which is considered to be the fair value.

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management'’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

¢ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

s how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.
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Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

s contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

e terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment

and extension features; and
e terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits
or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination)
is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial

recognition.
Ei il ts: Sul . ]

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are

reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are rneasured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gains and Losses on the Interest-free Loans from Promoters: Interest expense on loans availed from the
promoters of the Company is charged at effective interest rate method and charged to Finance cost. The deferred
income recognized at the time of initial recognition is recognized as income over the loan term on straight-line
basis.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition
Ei il

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.



A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:-
Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

» abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

s the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider

otherwise;
e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
Expected credit loss
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual

period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed
credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group

to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
s the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.
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Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e, the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company'’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(xv) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as
at the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a later date.

(xvi)Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief -
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:
1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment
including inter-segment revenue.
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2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallocable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallocable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a
whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or 'CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108.

(xvii) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent expenditure on an
intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense when incurred unless it is probable
that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally
assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably,
in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

Intangible assets under development

Expenditure on research and development eligible for capitalisation are carried as intangible assets under
development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use. An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Computer Software’s & other intangible assets is being depreciated on Straight line method based on the
method as prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013.

Intangible assets Useful lives (in years)
Software 3 Years

(xvii) Material Accounting Policy Information

The Company adopted Disclosure of accounting policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) from 1 April 2023. Although
the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the
accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material” rather than “significant” accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand
other information in the financial statements.

...Space intentionally left blank...



A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
[CIN: UT200KAZ020PTCT39870)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3 Property, plant and

(AN amounts ane in € Lars, wunloss stated othansse!

Current period Gross bleck (at cost] A d iath Met block
Asat Additions Disposal/ Asat Asat Additions Dispanal/ As at Asat
April 1, 2024 during the period Adjustme. March 31, 2025 April 1. 2024 during the paried Adjustment March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Land 13838 4502 - 16440 3 - - - 184.40
Factory sheds and building TIn54 16,50 = TET04 A057 2480 6537 21867
Plant and Eguiprent 858710 28853 = 327563 819.21 577986 - 1,397.17 TATEAG
Funiture and fistures nao 050 - 1.70 ail s - [} T4
Elactrical Equipments & tnstallation 104.04 12059 1400 21063 235 wn 2486 18577
Leasehold Improvements
- on plant & Machinery - - - = - - - - -
= an Building = 2026 - 2026 . 1.08 - 108 1316
Office aquipmants 463 2568 - mm oz 136 - 208 523
Computers .23 124 - aa7 33 201 - 537 310
10,012.72 496.72 14.00 10,495.44 B66.32 £29.87 - 1,495.19 B.999.25
Previous year Gross block {at cost} ! inti Net block
As at Additions Disposal/ A at Asat Additions Disposal/ Asar Asat
I1, 2023 during the year i March 11, 2024 Apail 1, 2023 during the year j March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Land 5641 ey 13838 - = - 13838
Factery budding and sheds BT765 02.8% 70,54 1715 2342 4057 72997
Plart and Equiprrent 579022 315588 = BIETID e 49739 - a1a21 8,157.89
Furnitune and fistures oso 03 OED 04 007 - an 069
Elextrical Equipments & Inatallation - 104,04 - 104.04 - 235 - 235 10169
Leasahaold Improvemants
- an plant & Machinery - - - - - - - -
= on Building = - - = = - - = -
Cffica equipmants 263 201 - 483 014 054 - arn i
Computers 491 232 - 723 155 TED - 336 187
6,542.32 3470.40 - 10,012.72 340.75 525.57 865.12 9.145.40
Note:
(i Tha Company has not carried out any revaluation of property, plant and equipmant for the year andad March 31, 2025
(i) Please refar note 54 for capital commitments.
{iH) Thara are no impairmant lsses recognised for the year ended March 31, 2005
[iw) Thera are no exchanga differences adjusted in Property, plant and equipment.
v} Land, factory building and plant and machinery, are subject to charge against sacured borrowings of the company referred to in notes as secured term loans from banks. (rafer note 501
v} During the period no interest has been capitalized.
4 Capital work-in-prograss March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the begmnning 104,20 168792
Addition during the period bk 10420
Capitalised during the period 170.02) 11687921
Balance at the end 313.55 104.20
Maote:
Capital work-in-progress ageing Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profects in progress
Less than 1 year 31358 10420
1-2 yoars. = B
2-3 ymars =
Mara than 3 years - -
31355 1“__1
Note:
Frojects are being executed at a differant locations invalhing commeon procusements therefore project wise identification wrt Capital Wark in progress is not feasible.
5 Right-of-use assets
Current pedod Groas block (at cost) latad Nt block
Asat Additions Disposal/ Az at As at Additions Disposal/ Agat Asat
Apel 1, 2024 during the period Adjustment  March 11, 2025 Apeil 1, 2024 during the period j March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Office Building 604 100.83 - 10687 158 618 10,16 9671
6.04 ‘|M 10627 198 6.18 10.18 96.11
Previoiis year
Gross block {at cost) . Net block
Asat Additions Disposal/ Asat Azt Additions. Dizposal/ Asat Asat
April 1, 2023 during the perod justment  March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023 during the period i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Office Building 604 = = 04 27 1.21 - 358 207
i 6.04 - 5.04 17 121 3.98 2.07
Naota: h s
Please refer note 42 for Lease Liabiities,
& Other Intangiblo assets
Current pariced Gross block {at cost) A d amortisation Net block
Asat Additions Disposal/ As at Asat Additions Disposal/ As at Asat
April 7, 2024 during the period Adjustment  March 11, 2015 April 1, 2024 during the pericd Adjustment March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Computer Software 1100 - - 11.00 1.08 345 - 454 646
11.00 - - 11.00 1.08 3,45 - 4.54 5.46
Previous year Gross block (at cost] - —— T,
As at Additions Disposal/ Asat Asat Additions Disposal/ Asat Asat
April 1, 2023 during the year dj March 11, 2024 April 1, 2023 during the year Adj March 37, 2024 March 31, 2024
Software < 11.00 - 11.00 - 108 - 1.08 992
= 1‘J£ 11.32._ - 1.08 ‘I.“__;_ 9.92
Nota:
t There are no internally gererated intangible assets.
(ii)  The Company has not earied sut any revaluation of intangible assets for the year anded March 31, 2025,
(i) There are no other restriction on title of intangible assets.
(iv) Thare are no sexchange differences adpusted in intangible assels.
(v} The Campany has not acquirad intangible assats free of charge, o for nominal consid by way of a ar
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Alf amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unless stated atherwisa)
Investments (non-current)
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Al +

t in equity instr
Unquoted

FPEL Celestical Private Limited
19,60,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Note:
Carrying value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:

Book value of unguoted investments
Market value of unquoted investments

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer nate 45.

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

196.00 196.00
196.00 196.00
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
196.00 196.00
196.00 196.00

There are no significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of
The Company had invested in equity shares of FPEL Celestical Private Limited for procurement of power towards captive consumption. The
management anticipates that the termination of contract in future (if any) would be at cost i.e. the amount invested. The investment has been

made only for procuring the power and not for any financial benefit. However, considering the above facts, cost of investment has been

considered as its fair value which is same as book value.

Other financial assets (non-current)

Unsecured, considered good - at amortised cost
Security deposits

Note:
For explanation on the Company’s credit risk management process, refer note 45,

Other non-current assets

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid lease Rent
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances

Inventories

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw materials

Stores and spares
Finished goods
Goods in transit

-Stores & Consumables

Valued at estimated realisable value
By-product

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

9228

39,53

92.28

39.53

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

339 250

235 -
28.33 28238
34.07 284.88

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

69291 3,144.77
570.37 306.21
6,826.69 2,854.33
9.48

13.42 -
144.43 74.65
8,247.76 6,389.44
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Note:

Inventories are hypothicated as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 50}.
Good in Transit includes Raw materials, Stores and Spares etc
Finished goods alse includes Semi Finished Goods.

Trade Receivables

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(i) Trade receivables — considered good 481412 1,948.65
(i} Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance (260.77) (9.02)
4,553.35 1,939.63

Note:

The Company has measured expected credit loss of trade receivable as per Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments’ (refer note 45).

Trade receivables ara hypothecated as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 50).

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 45.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally received in the Company's operating cycle.

For trade receivables due from directar or other officer of the Company and firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a

director or a member either jointly or severally with other persons, refer outstanding balances mentioned in note 43.

Trade receivables ageing outstanding from date of transaction

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good

0-6 months

6-12 months

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Less: Impairment loss allowance

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Cash on hand

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with maturity more than three months but less than twelve months

Note:

Above balances are held with bank as security in relation te repayment of borrowings (refer note 20 and 26).

4,173.17 1,644.07
33698 283.32
296.18 21.26

178 -
(260.77) (9.02)
4,553.35 1,939.63
Asat As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

5.00 -
10.32 13.54
15.32 13.54

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

475.89

203.47

475.89

203.47




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

14 Loans (current)

15

16

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to
-Employees

Note:
For explanation on the Company’s credit risk management process, refer note 45,

Other financial assets (current)

Gaovernment Grant Receivable
Unsecured, considered good

Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits
Accrued Interest on Security deposits

Note:

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

517

1.70

5.17

1.70

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

250.00 -
0.82 0.13
324 -

254.06 0.13

Government grant includes Incentive against the capital subsidy of Effluent Treatment Plant under Industrial policy Rs.684.72 Crores (March

31, 2024 Nil).

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 45.

Current tax assets (net)

Current tax assets

Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Balance with government authorities
Advance to suppliers

Unclaimed GST Input Tax

Prepaid lease Rent

Prepaid Expenses

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

101.63

B4.84

101.63

84.84

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

2,916.49 2,549.21
918.58 1,262.34
820 1621

0.63 -
178 2.00
3,851.66 3,829.76
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
{CIN: UZT7200KAZ020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in & Lacs, unfess stated otherwise)

Equity share capital

The Company has two class of shares i.e. Equity Shares , having a par value of ¥ 10 per share .

Authorised shares

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Equity shares 10,00 1000
1,00,000 shares of ¥ 10 each
Preference shares 990.00 =
99,00,000 shares of ¥ 10 each
Total 1,002500 10.00
fssued, subscribed and fully pald-up shares
Equity shares
50,000 shares of ¥ 10 each 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
MNumber Number
Equity shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the peried 50,000 50,000
Shares issued during the pdriod - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 50,000 50,000
Terms/rights attached to equity shares
Voting
Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held.
Dividends
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General
Megting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The Company has not distributed any dividend in the current period.
Asat Asat
Equity shares held by holding company March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
b Number g
A-ONE STEELS INDLA LIMITED (fermerly known as "A-One Steels India Private
Limited”, "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited”) 49,999 09.998% 45,999 99.998%
Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share of the Company As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Namae of shareholders Number _ Percentage Number Percentage
A-ONE STEELS INDIA UMITED (formerly known as "A-One Steels India Private
Limited”, "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited”) 49,999 99.598% 45,995 99.998%
Mo dlass of shares have been allotted as fully paid up g to (s) without pay ‘being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus
shares or bought back during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet data,
Details of equity share held by Promoters at the end of period Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Tchisnge cutog fhe
MName of promoters Number Number Percentag: paniad
A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED (formerly known as “A-One Steels India Private
Limited”, "A-One Steel and Allays Private Limited”) 45,999 99.998% 49,999 99.998% -
Sandeep Kumar 1 0.002% 1 0.002% ¥
50,000 100.00% 50,000 100,00% -
Ma shares are reserved to be issued under options and contracts/ commitrents for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.
0.01% Mon Cumulative MNon C ibl: ! bl nce shares of 99,00,000 of Rs 10 each have been issued on private placement basis at their Extra
Ordinary General Mesting on multiple dates ( 19th February 2021, dth March 2021, 13th March 2021 respectively] for 2 period of 10 years
Other equity As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings
Opening balance (2,076.45) (524,57
Loss during the period (2,740.53) {1,551.44)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 425 (0.44)
Tax on Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (1.07) -
Others 10.20)
Closing balance (4,814.00) (2,076.45)

Nature and purpose of other equity:
Retained earnings
Retained eamings represents the surplus/ (deficit) in profit and loss account and appropriations.




20

(U]
(i)
(iii)

21

22

0]
(i)

23

24

Baorrewings (non-current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans:
- from banks {refer Note i)
Less: Current maturities

14.5 % Debentures 6,000 Non convertible Debentures Face Value Rs.1,00,000 each

Less: Current maturities
Unsecured - at amortised cost

Privately placed non-convertible redeemable preference shares (refer Note i}

From related parties (refer Note iii}

Note:

For Terms and conditions refer note 50 & its related Note (i to v)
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 45

For Related Party Transactions refer note 43

Lease liabilities {(non-current)

Lease liabilities

Note:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 45

Refer Note 42 for lease liabilities

Trade Payables (non-current)

Trade Payables

Note:

P

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 45
Trade bl ing-0 ding from the date of transaction

Pay el |

Particulars
Dues to others
Unbilled Dues

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Provisions(Non Current)

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for Compensated Absenses

Refer Mote 51 far Employee benefit provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Refer Note 47

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTCT39870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

2,31003 3,047.35
(568.37) (573.73)
3,857.08 -
(1,466.68) -
507.60 44885
4,073.88 2,638.71
8,713.54 5,561.18
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

82,05

1,04

82.05

1.04

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

5,638.36 .
5,638.36 -

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
563836 .
5,638.36 -

As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

1098

1593
367 245
19.60 13.43

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

549.57

44136

549.57

441.36
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Other non-current liabilities

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in T Lacs, unfess stated otherwise)

Deferred Income on Government Grants
Deferred fair value on account of Preference shares

Deferred fair value on account of Long Term Trade Payables

Deferred fair value on account of Unsecured Loans

Borrowings (current)

Secured - at amortised cost

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 48)

Cash Credit from Banks

Note:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management pracess, refer note 45
For terms & conditions, repayment and nature of security given, refer note 50

Lease liabilities (current)

Lease liabilities

Note:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 45

Refer Note 42 for Lease liabilities

Trade payables

(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(i} total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises — Disputed Dues
(iv) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises — Disputed Dues

Note:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 45

ding from the date of transaction

Trade payabl ing-Outst

Particulars

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

Less than 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Dues to others
Unbilled Dues
Less than 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
194.79 -
33759 40577
933.94 -
1,125.27 370.28
2,591.59 176.05
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

2,035.05 57373

1,001.85 1,811.38

3,036.90 2,385.11
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

1626

1.34

16.26

134

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

15.04 2.54
10,242.75 14,796.63
10,257.80 14,7997

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

1250 -
2.54 2,54
68.69 13395
7.54239 14,397.88
2,623.20 157.70
8.48 107.10
10,257.80 14,799.17
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(AN amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated otherwise]

In terms of Section 22 of Chapter V of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006), the disclosures of payments due to any supplier are as

The principal amount and the interest due therean remaining unpaid to any MSME supplier as
at the end of sach accounting year included in:

- Trade payables

- Payable for Capital Goods

- Interest due

The principal amount and the interest due therson remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year

- Principal

- Interest due

the amount of interest paid by the company under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appainted day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointment day during the year) but without adding the Interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

The amaunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

Other financial liabilities (current)

Payable for capital goods
Employees related payable
Unpaid Dividend (21-22)
Unpaid Dividend (22-23)

Note:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 45

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable

Advance from Customers

Deferred Income on Government Grants

Deffered fair value on account of Preference shares

Deferred fair value on account of Long Term Trade Payables

'Deffered fair value on account of Unsecured Loans e

Provisions(Current)
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity

Provision for Compensated Absenses

Note:
Refer Note 51 for Employee benefit provisions

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

1250 -
2.54 -
15.04 -
12.50 -
254 -
254 -
254 .
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
15893 57.72
3032 23.07
- 0.10
- 0.10
189.25 80.99
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
51.52 5533
1435 1021
1456 -
68.18 6819
53368 .
27443 123.43
957.12 257.16
As at Asat

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

0.05 0.07
0.07 0.06
0.12 0.13




32

i3

34

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unfess stated atherwise)

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Sales of Products includes Sale of Traded Goods amounting to Rs 3,246.50 |akhs

Infermation required as per Ind AS 115:

Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markats
Revenue from customers based in India
Revenue from customers based outside India

Timing of revenue recognition
Transferred at a point in time
Transferred over time

Trade receivables and contract assets/(liabilities)
Trade receivables
Contract liability (Advance from customers)

hi: e

Performance and ining perf

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

16,389.29 43,283.77
36,889.29 43,283.77
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

There are no remaining performance obligations for the year ended March 31, 2025, as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goads,

Gavernment Grants

Government Grant

Other income

Interest income
- on fixed deposits
- on deferred fair value gain of Preference Shares
- on deferred fair value gain of Long Term Trade Payables
- on deferred fair value gain of Security Deposits
- on deferred fair value gain of unsecured loans
- On Security Deposit
- Other Interest Income

Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw material & stores

Add: Purchases of raw material

Add: Purchases of stores, spares, components stc.
Add: Freight & Transportation

Less: Closing stock of raw material & stores

36,889.29 4328377
36,889.29 43,28377
4,553.35 1.939.63
14.35 1021
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

4025 -
40.25 e
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
28,59 11.95
68.19 68.19
13342 -
013 =
123.43 123.43
359 =
1.38
358.73 203.57

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

3,460.46 536.04
3352585 41,820.06
382598 3797.01
39,24 -
(1.276.64) (3.460.46)
39,574.89 42,701.65

The Company procures the raw material with an intention to use in the manufacturing process however based on the opportunities available the company

wants to make sale of the raw material. Therefore the entire purchase is shown under Cost of Material Consumed.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Changes in inventories of Finished goods and By Products

Opening stock
"-Finished Goods
"-By Products

Closing stock
'-Finished Goods
'-By Products

Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages, bonus and allowances

Staff and labour welfare expenses

Employer's contribution to PF, ESIC and other funds
Gratuity

Finance costs

Interest expensas
- an Borrowings
- on Unsecured Loans
- an Lang Term Trade Payables
- an preference shares
- on Debentures
- on Unsecured Loans fair valuation
- on Security Deposits
- on lease liabilities (refer note 42)
- on Amortisation of Processing fees
Other borrowing costs
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised during the periad

Depreciation and amorti:

Depreciation an property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6}
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 5)

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
{CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)

(Al amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

2,928.98 2,295.70
285433 2,295.70
T4B5 -
(6,971.12) (2,928.98)
(6,826.69) (2,854.33)
(144.43) (74.65)
(4,042.14) (633.28)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
35558 22307
2603 3280
486 408
9.17 5.98
395.64 265.93
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
41453 49325
9521 88,63
11840 -
5875 5225
625.19 -
10850 100,84
016 3
223 027
82.08 068
460 530
- (10.47)
1,510.45 730.75
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
629.87 52558
348 1.08
618 121
639.51 527.87
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KAZ020PTC139870)
MNotes to the financial statemaents for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated othenwise)

Other expansas

Legal and professional expenses (refer Note)
Audit Fees

Sitting Fees

Outside labour charges

Security Charges

Commission Expenses

Rent and Hire Charges

Rates and taxes

Electricity Expenses

Travelling and conveyance expenses

Insurance expenses

Freight and forwarding (net)

Repairs and maintenance expenses

Allowances for credit losses on trade recaivables
Telephone & Internet Expences

Adverti &8
Miscellanaous expenses

Promotion E

Note:
Payment of remuneration to auditors (excluding GST)

- as auditor
« for statutory audit
« for tax audit

Earning per share

(a). Basic and diluted earnings per share (in absolute figures)
Fram continuing operatians attributable to the equity holders of the Company

(b). Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per shara

Basic earnings per share

Loss from cantinuing operation attributable to the equity share holders

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share

(c). Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic and

diluted earnings per share

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

17.61 523
710 250

1.20 -
152.72 17473
17.65 975
65,05 4874
93.40 19.53
432 358
671.85 739.76
1337 2041
810 1069
158,14 B1.66
14198 90.54
25175 9.02
5.80 245

11.43 =
22.14 7.50
1,843.861 1,226.09

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

2,50 2.00

0.60 0.50

3.10 2.50

For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(5,481.06) (3,102.88)
(2,740.53) (1,551.44)

(2,740.53) (1,551.44)

0.50 0.50

The Company has riot issued any instrument that is potentially dilutive in the future. Hence, the weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end

of the peried for calculation of basic as well as diluted EPS is the same,
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in T Lacs, uniess stated otherwise)

Leases

Leases as a lessee

Non Exempted Leases

The Company has leasing agreement with the holding company in respect of its head office for a period of 5 years,

The Cornpany also has leasing agreement with Mr. Vasant Pukhraj Oswal and Mrs. Rekha Vasant Oswal in respect of its Pune Godown for a period of 5

years.
Movement in lease liabilities

Opening balance

Additions on account of new lease contracts entered inte during the period
Finance cost accrued during the periad

Payment of lease liabilities
Closing balance

Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Current lease liabilities
Nen-current lease liabilities

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at period end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

Commitments for lease payments in relation to non-exempted leases are
payable as follows:

- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five years

- later than five years

A recoginised in the

of profit and less

Dapreciation on right-of-use assets
Finance costs on lease liabilities

of cash flows

Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities

For reconciliation of carrying amount of right-of-use assets and details thereof, refer note 5.

Exempted leases

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
238 381
10083 -
223 027
(7.12) (1.50)
98.32 2.38
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
16.26 134
82,06 1.04
98.32 2.38
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
2384 1.50
95.92 1.06
119.76 2.56
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6.18 1.21
223 0.27
8.41 1.48
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
7.2 1.50
7.12 1.50

The Company has recognised % 0 as rent expenses during the period which pertains to short term lease/ low value asset which was not recognised as

part of right of use asset.




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U2T200KAZ0ZOPTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amaounts are in € Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

43 Related party disclosures

The related parties as per terms of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are disclosed balow:

A, List of related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place

Nature of relationship Name of related party
Holding company A-One Steels India Limited
Vanya Steels Private Limited
Fellow subsidiary company A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited

A-One Singapore Pte, Ltd.

Basai Steels and Power Private Limited (from 23rd November, 2024)

Enterprises in which person, who exercise
control over the Company, have significant
influence or control or is/are KMP

Bellary Tubes Corporation [discontinued with effect from 23rd December, 2024)

Laksh Steels
Laksh Steels (Proprietorship)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Sunil jallan
Sandeep Kumar
Sukanya Acharya
Kamaldeep Singh

Manaj Kumar (R d on 23rd December, 2024)

Directar
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director

Maona Jallan Wife of Director

; Krishan Kumar Jallan Father of Director
Relati f KMIP:

R " Daya Jallan Mother of Dirctor

Priva Jallan Wife of Director

T T Shri Gouri Shankar Jalan Charitable Trust
Ent whiih Divach PR
s sk A-One Gold Retail Private Limited

B. Transactions with related parties during the period are as following: -

Name of Related Party and Nature of Transactions Nature of Relationship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of goods

A-One Steels India Limited Holding company £,420.70 2381671

Bellary Tubes Corparation Entities contralled by KMP - 6.43

Vanya Steels Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 15493 57.21
Sale of CWIP/PPE

A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 14.00 -
Purchase of goods

A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 11,344.07 31,73237

Bellary Tubes Corporation Entities controlled by KMP 15,527.64 6,295.51
Purchase of CWIP/PPE

A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 240,60 204.29

Vanya Steels Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 40.86 11.83
Sale of Investments

A-One 5teels India Limited Holding company - £84.00
Interest axp p—_— g

A-One Steels India Limited o Holding company 95.21 88.63

Sunil Jallan Director 5633 5216

Sandeep Kumar Director 5257 AB.6E
Loading and Unloading Charges

A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 4.52
Freight Income

A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 8.6 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities

A-One Steels India Limited Helding company 0.15 0.27




Payment of lease liabilities

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(4il amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 1.50 150
Corporat tee taken (U m
A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 6,000.00 -
Personal guarantee taken (Unexecuted)
sunil Jallan Director 6,000.00 3
Sandeep Kumar Director 6,000.00 =
Krishan Kumar Jallan Relative of KMP 6,000.00
Borrowings Taken
Sunil Jallan Directar 1,145.00 -
Sandeep Kumar Director 1,125.00 =
Balance outstanding with or from related parties as at:
Name of Related Party and Nature of Balances Nature of Relationship For the year ended Asat

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade payables
A-One 5teels India Limited Holding company 7.136.46 7,855.40
Bellary Tubes Corporation Entities controlled by KMP 798282 592472
Varya Steels Private Limited Fellaw Subsidiary 037 -
Advance to Suppliers
Wanya Steels Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary x 494
Nen-current barrowings
A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 123870 1,154.01
Sunil Jallan Director 1,448.45 1,035.00
Sandeep Kumar Director 1,385.73 966.00
Lease liabilities
A-One Steels India Limited Hoelding company 1.03 238
Corporate g taken (U d)
A-One Steels India Limited Holding company 11,850.00 5,850.00
P 1 g taken (U
Sunil Jallan Director 11,850.00 5,850.00
Sandeep Kumar Director 11,850.00 5,850.00
Krishan Kumar Jallan Ralative of KMP 6,000.00 -
Sitting Fees Payable
Sukanya Acharya Sitting Fees 0.60 -
Kamaldeep Singh Sitting Fees 060 -
. Comp tion of Key M ial P 1/ Rel of KMP
The compensation of directors and other member of Key Managerial Personnel/ Relative of KMP during the year/period was as follows:
MNama of KMP/Relative of KMP Nature of Compensation Far the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sukanya Acharya Sitting Fees 0.60 -
Kamaldeep Singh Sitting Fees (.60 -

1.20
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTCT29870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year anded March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unless stated atharwisal

..Continued fram previous page

b).

{i).

Fair value hisrarchy
Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are abservable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 2: If one or maore of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, The fair value of financial assets and liabilities included in Level 3 is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar
instruments.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their shert-term nature. Fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

Valuation processes
The M performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 2 fair values.

Financial risk management

The Company has expasure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
* Credit risk
= Liguidity risk
* Market risk

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Investments 196.00 196,00
Trade Receivables 4,553.35 1,939.63
Cash and cash equivalents 15.32 13.54
Bank balances ather than cash and eash equivalents 475.89 20347
Loans 517 170
Other financial assets 34634 39.66

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's
receivables from custormers.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from custemers and loans. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the exposures to these credit risks on an
engoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with scheduled commercial banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic
credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reparting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derivad from revenue earned from customers
primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic ervirenment in which it eperates and the Company manages its Credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit
lirnits and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment |oss or gain. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its
expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on lifetime ECL} for the purpose of impairment loss allowance, the Company
@stimates amounts basad on the business enviranment in which the Company operates, and management considers that the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) when counter
party fails to make payments as per terms of sale/service agreamants. Howevar the Company based upon historical experience determine an impairment allowance for loss an receivables.

When a trade receivable is credit impaired, it is written off against trade receivables and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the income statement.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is disclosed in Note 11
The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Not due = -
0-90 days past due 4,005,868 149186
90 ta 180 days past due 16749 152.21
180-365 days 336.98 28332
365-730 days 256,18 21.26
Mare than 730 days 7.79 -
Total 4,814.12 1,948.65
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
{CIN: UZ7200KA2020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unfess stated otherwise)

Maovement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables: For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning (9.02) =
Impairment loss recognised (251.75) (3.02)
Impairment loss utilised - -
Balance at the end 260.77 9.02
I i i bl from u|E G t
The Company has manufacturing units in karnataka are eligible for incentives under the respective State Industrial Palicy. The Company is confident sbaut the ulti lisation of the dues

fram the State Governments and there is no risk of default

For the year ended  For the year ended

Meovement of Incentives under Government Schemes March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning = -

Incentive Accrued 40.25 -

Deferred Government Grant 209.75 -

Incentive Received N N

Balance at the end 250.00 -
Ll

The sanction of this capital subsidy for ETP is subject to following conditions:

1. If the State Government is satisfied that the 50% capital subsidy has been abtained by misrey ion of the ial facts, furnishing of false information or if the enterprise goes out of
praduction within ane year after receipt of subsidy, the State Gevernment shall have the right to claim refund of the capital subsidy of Rs. 250 Lakhs sanctioned, together with interest as the
State Government may charge.

2. The grantee shall not change the location of the whale or any part of the industrial enterprise or effect any contraction or disposal of a part of its total fixed capital investment within a
period of one year after the enterprise receives this grant.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as passible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. Tha Company's policy is to regularly menitor its liquidity raquiremants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding from Company companies to
meet its liquidity requirements in the shart and long term:

The Company's liquidity management process as monitared by management, includes the fallowing:
- Day to Day funding, managed by menitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of tha Company's liquidity pesition on the basis of expected cash flaws.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:
Samying: : Contractual cash flows
Asat March 31, 2025 Less than Between ane to More than
amount® Total
one year five years five years
Borrowings 11,75044 3.881.16 8,044.90 3.319.90 15,245.96
Lease liabilities 98.32 23.84 9592 - 119.76
Trade payablas 15,896.15 10,257.79 712099 - 17,378.78
Other financial liabilit 189.25 189.25 g - = 189.25
Total 27,934.15 14,352.05 15,261.80 3,319.90 32,933.77
Earviion Contractual cash flows
Asat March 317, 2024 S Less than Between one to More than Fital
one year five years five years
Borrowings 7,946.29 285081 5,081.56 1,150.59 1012336
Lease liabilities 238 123 238 - 361
Trade payables 14,799.17 14,799.17 . 2 14,799.17
Other financial liabilities 80.99 B80.99 = - 80.99
Total 22,828.83 17.772.20 5,083.94 1,150.99 25,007.14

balance as per Books of Accounts

*Carrving




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KAZ020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in T Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

(iil). Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises rine types of risk; interest rate risk, currency
risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

a. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of ehanges in market interest rates. The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-
term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate risk arises majarly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest, These obligations exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The
exposure of the Campany’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

. 3 Asat Asat
Variable-rate instruments
March 31,2025 31-Mar-24
Term loans from banks & Fls 2258167 3.047.35
Cash Credit from Banks (Secured} 1,001.85 181138
Total 3,293.52 4,858.73
Cash flow itivity lysis for variable-rate instruments

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period,

Far flaating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reparting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point

increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and rep t's t of the r bly possible change in interast
rates,
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
50 bps incr 50 bps di 50 bps i 50 bps decrease

Term loans from banks & Fis

For the year ended March 31, 2025 (11.46) 11.46 (B.57) 857

For the year ended March 31, 2024 (15.24) 15.24 (11,40} 11.40
Cash credit from banks

Faor the year ended March 31, 2025 {5.01) 5.01 (3.75) 375

For the year endad March 31, 2024 19.06) 59.06 [6.78) 678

b. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in
the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows ta the extent of earnings and expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange
rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company's operating, investing and financing activities.

Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Company has ne foreign currency denominated manetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reperting period, therefors, there is no expasure to currency risk,

Capital managemant

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other aquity reserves.

M the Company's capital requirements in arder to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
Te maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

Tha Company manitars capital on the basis of the debt ta capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital tequity attributable to owners of the parent plus
interest-bearing debts).

HE *LAsat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrawings 716896 485873
Lass: Cash and bank balances 49121 217.01
Adjusted net debt (A) 6,677.75 4,641.72
Total equity (B) (4,809.01) (2,071.45)

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) (1.39) (2.24)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unless stated othenwiss)

Income taxes

t of Profit and Loss

A ts recognised in the Stat

Income tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Change in recognised temporary differences 106.84 219.77
106.84 219.77
A ts recognised in Other Compreh Income For the period ended March 31,2025
Before Tax (expense)/ Net
tax income of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to prafit or loss
Remeasurement of equity instruments = - -
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 4.25 (1.07) 3.18
425 (1.07) 3.18
For the period ended March 31,2025
Before Tax (expense)/ Net
tax income of tax
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of equity instruments = 3 =
Rermeasurements of defined benefit plans (0.44) - (0.44)
(0.44) - (0.44) |
Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Profit before tax from continuing operations 2517% (2,633.69) 25.17% {1,331.67)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate - -
Tax effect of:
Expenses on fair valuation of financial instruments & Leases 23993 25.74)
Income on on fair valuation of financial instrumants & Leases {0.23) 0.01
Expenditures disallowed under the Income Tax Act 83.93 243.96
Other adjustments (226.69) 153
106.84 219.75
Movement in deferred tax balances As at Recog ] Recog 4 As at
March 31, 2024 in P&L in OCI March 31, 2025
Deferred tax assets
Leases 007 033 - 0.40
Others 278.80 664.15 - 94295
Sub- Total (a) 278.87 664.48 - 943.35
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment 3, 45375 93.93 - 54768
Borrowings 26649 23993 - 50642
Others - 43746 (1.07) 43746
Sub- Total {b) 720.24 771.32 (1.07) 1,491.55
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (b) - (a) 441.37 106.84 (1.07) 548.20
Movement in deferred tax balances As at Recognised Recognised As at
March 31, 2023 in P&L in OCI March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets
Leases 0.08 (0.01) - 007
Provisions for employee benefits 153 (1.53) - E
Others 32286 (44.06) * 278.80
Sub- Total (a) 324.47 (45.60) = 278.88
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment 209.78 24396 - 45375
Borrowings 336.28 {69.79) = 26649
Sub- Total (b) 546.06 17417 = 72023
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (b) - (a) 221.59 219.78 - 441.37
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A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTCT39870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year onded March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in T Locs, unfess stated otherwise)

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans:
The Campany makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employes salaries, in respect of qualifying emph towards provident fund and labour welfare fund which

ate defined contribution plans. The Company has no abligations ether than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they
accrue,

Expense under defined contribution plans include: Far the year ended  For the year snded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Employer's it to provident fund 421 159

4.21 3.59

Defined banafit plans:

Gratulty

The Company operates a post-amployment defined benefit plan for Gratuity, This plan entitles an employee to receive half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time

of retirement/exit,

Tha present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projectad unit credit method, which recognise each periad of service as giving rise te additional

ployes benefit entitl and each unit sep ly to build up the final abligation.

The mast recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2025, The present value of the

defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit mathad,

Met defined benefit liability/(aszet) As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

e e e

Prasent value of abligations 1598 11.06
Fair value of plan assets - -
Total emplayee benefit liabilities/(; ) 15.98 11.06
Mon-current 1593 10.9%
Current 005 007
The details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the gnized in the fi ial as at March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Change in defined benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at the baginning of the year 11.06 453
Service Cost 838 5.64
Interest expense 0.7 0,35
Past service cost - plan amendments -

Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains) flosses (4.25} 0.44
Benefits paid - -
Benefits obliged at the end of the year 15.98 11.06

The amount for the period ended March 31, 2025 recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss account under employee bencfit expenses is as follows :

Particulars As at

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

Asat

Saervice Cost B.38 5,64
Met interest on the net defined banefit [iability/asset 0719 035
Past service cost - plan amendments = =
Flan Amendments & e -
Net gratuity cost 817 5.99




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
[CIN: UZ7200KAZ020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in ¥ Laes, unless stoted otherwise)

The amount for the period ended March 31, 2025 d in the of other h income is as follows :
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Remeasurements bass (gain}
= Actuarial loss (gain) arising fram: -
- financial assumptions 1.08 1.04
- axparience adjustment (5.31) (0.60)
- demegraphic assumptions - =
Return on plan assets excluding interast income = =

{4.25) 0.44
Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total plan assats - -
Funds managed by insurer - =
% of Plan assets - %
Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available an government bands at the accounting date with a
term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, senicrity, promotion and ather relevant factors an long term basis, Valuation assumptions arz as
fallawes which have been selected by the Company,

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate 6.95% 1.15%
Expacted rate of future salary increase h

10% for the first theee 10% for the first three|

4 7% thereafter years and 7%
ephibol thereaftar
Expectad rate of attrition 1% -3% 1% - 3%
Martality |ALM 2072-14 laLM 2012-14
Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the ralevant actuarial assumptions, halding other assumptians constant, would have affectad the defined banafit ohligation
by the amounts shewn below:
March 31, 2025 31-Mar-24
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rata (1.00% movemeant) 1307 19.74 .04 1366
Future salary grawth {1.00% mevemant) 19568 1306 1363 203
Attrition rate {50.00% of attrition rate movement) 1557 16.40 1082 11304
Mortality Rate (10.00% of martality rate movernent) 1598 1598 11.06 11.06
Altheugh the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the glan, it dees provide an app of the of the shown.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before ratirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit
on retirement.
Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time, As such the Campany is expased to various risks as follows:
a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increase plan's liabiity. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability,
b). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.
<. Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lowet or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
d). Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher er lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withd | rates at sul can impact the plan's liability.
Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
Duration of defined benefit obligation Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than 1 year 0.05 0.07)
Between 2-5 years EP: 1 0.78]
Between 6-10 years 240 172
Owver 10 years 83.22 6037
Total B6.78 62.94)
R




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in € Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

...Continued from previous page

Defined benefit plans:

Earned Leave Plan
The Company operates an Earned Leave Plan, This plan entitles an employee the right to accumulate and carry farward his leave to a future period or encash
the leave.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit methed, which recognise each period of service as
benefit entitl

Ak | I

giving rise to emp

and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation,

¥

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the Leave Liability for Leave Encashment were carried out as at March 31, 2025. The present value
of the Leave Liability and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

MNet defined benefit liability/(asset) As at As at

March 31, 2025 31-Mar-24
Prezent value of obligations 374 251
Fair value of plan assets - -
Total employee benefit liabilities/(assets) 3.74 2.51
Mon-current 167 245
Current 0.07 0.06
The details of the defined benefit plans and the ts recognized in the fi ial stat ks as at March 31, 2025 are as follows:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prasent Value of Obligation at the end 374 251
Fair Value of Plan Assets = =
Surplus / (Deficit) (3.74) 251
Effects of Assat Ceiling, if any - -
Net Asset / (Liability} (3.74) (2.51)
The amount for the period ended March 31, 2025 r d in the stab t of Profit and Loss account under

| benefit exp is as foll
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 251 -
Present value of obligation as at the end 374 251
Benefit Payment =
Actual return on plan assets =
Transfer In / (Cut) = -
1.23 2.51

Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following: As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total plan assets - T
Funds managed by insurer 3
% of Plan assets %




A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in ¥ Lacs, unless stated otherwise)

..Continued from previous page

D. Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at
the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Company.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate £.95% 115%

10% for the first three 10% for the first three
years and 7% thereafter  years and 7% thereafter

Expected rate of future salary increase

Expected rate of attrition 1% - 3% 1% - 3%

Martality IALM 2072-74 IALM 2012-14

E. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to ane of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
Leave Liability by the amounts shown below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decreass
Discount rate (1.00% movement) 314 451 209 305
Future salary growth {1.00% movement) 450 313 3.05 2.08
Attrition rate (50.00% meavement) 374 315 252 2.50
Mortality Rate {10.00% mavement) 374 335 251 251
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in paymert, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not
applicable being a lump sum benefit an retirement.
Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as follows:
a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increase plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the
liability.
b). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.
c). Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
d). Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact
the plan’s liability.
F. Expected maturity lysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
Duration of Leave Liability . . As at As at
- March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than 1 year 0.07 0.06
Between 2-5 years 034 0.26
Between 6-10 years 0.51 D.36L
Over 10 years 16.05 12.56/
Total 16.97 13.24]
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£-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KAZ0ZOPTCT39870)
Motes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
fAdl amounts are i ¥ Lacs unfess stated otheniise)

53 Contingent Liabilities Asat Az at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Guarantees
FPEL Calestical Private Limited (refer Mote) 30.19 -
Note:

The company has issued bank guarantee to FPEL Calastical Private Limited aggregating to ¥ 30.1% lakhs in FY 24-25

As at As at
54 Capital commitments March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for inet of capital advances of March 31, 2025: 22833 Lakhs; March 31, 2024:

228238 Lakhs) 10370 79.66

55 Expenditure on C5R activities

As per Section 135 of tha Companies Act, 2011, the Company is not covered under the said previsions and not required to spend any ameunt on C5R activities in current period.

56 Information required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

{i} Investments
The company has made Investments of Rs. 196 Lakhs in Other than subsidiaries as at 31st March 2025,

5

=1

The Parliament of India has approved new Labour Codes which would impact the contributions by the Company towards ident Fund, Employee State and Gratuity. The effective date fram

which the changes are applicable i yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. The Company will carry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial statemants in the
pericd in which the Codes became effactive and the related rules are published,

58 The Company does not have any hons with s struck-off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

59 The Company does not have any immevable property (ather than properies where the Company is a lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in the favouur of the lasses) whose tidle deeds
are not held in the name of the Company.

G0 The Company does not have any Benami proparty, where any proceading has been initiated or pending against the Campany for halding any Banami property.

61 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypta currency or Virtual Currancy during the peried.

62 The Company have not advanced or leaned or invested funds to any sther persanis) or antityfies), inchuding foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the undarstanding that the Intermediary shall
{a) directhy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in asy mannar whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Banaficiarias) or

(k) prowide any guarantee, security or the like ta or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

€3 The Company hava not received any fund from any persenis) or entityiies), inehuding fareign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recarded in writing or otharwise) that the Company
shall

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries ar
|b) provide any guarantee, security of the fike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
G4 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies {"ROC") beyand the statutary periad.

55 The Company has not done any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the perind in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

&6 The Company has not been declared a wifful defaulter by any bank ar financial institutions or other lender in accordance with the guidalines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

67 The Company has net used any borrowings from banks and financal institutions for purpose other than far which it was taken

8

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on August 07, 2025, 3

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICALFEN, 302049

Bengaluru
Date: 01 Date; 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025
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BOARD’S REPORT
To,
Dear Shareholders,

Directors have pleasure in presenting their 05%" Annual Report on working of the Company together with
audited statement of Accounts of the company for the year ended 31t March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS/STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

Financial performance of your Company on a standalone basis for the financial year 2024-25 are
summarized below:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars From 01% April 2024 to | From 015 April 2023 to
31 March 2025 315t March 2024
Net Revenue from operations 36889.29 43283.77
Other Income o 398.98 203.57 |
Total Income 37288.28 43487.34
Total Expenses 39921.96 44819.01
Profit/(Loss) before tax (2633.69) (1331.67)
Tax Expenses, MAT Credit & Deferred tax 106.84 219.77
Profit / (Loss) after tax (2740.53) (1551.44)
Add : Other Comprehensive Income 318 (0.44)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (2737.35) (1551.88)
Earnings Per Share (Basic) (5481.06) (3102.88)

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW:
During the year under review, the total income of the company of Rs. 36889.29 Lakhs as compared tc
previous year total income of Rs. 43283.77 Lakhs and the Company has recorded Loss after tax of Rs.
2740.53 lakhs as compared to previous year Loss after tax of Rs. 1551.44 Lakhs. Due to increase in cost

of materials and other expenses company incurred loss for current year.

Your Directors expect that the performance of the Company during the current financial year would

improve as estimated.




3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There is no change in the nature of business carried out by the Company during the financial year

2024-25.

4. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEEN END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position between end of

financial year and date of report.

However, post Financial Year, following New Object Clause No 4,5 and 6 are inserted in addition to
the existing clauses of 3(a) of the objects to be pursued by the company on its incorporation are of
memorandum of association at the EGM held on 14.06.2025:

4. *To carry on in any part of India or elsewhere the business and operation in
particular to buy, take on lease or under a licence, concession, grant or otherwise
acquire mines, mining rights in any land or other place and metalliferous land and any
interest there in and to explore, work, develop, turn to account the same and
operation of prospecting, exploring, operating, extraction, processing, refining,
trading, and marketing and working on mines, quarries and to win, set, crush, smelt,
manufacture, process, excavate, dig, break, acquire, develop, exercise, turn to account,
survey, produce, prepare, remove, undertake, barter, convert, finish, load, unload,
handle, transport, buy sell, import, export, supply, and to act as agent, broker, Adatia,
stockiest, distributor, consultant, contractor, manager, operator or otherwise to deal in
all sorts of presents and future ores, minerals, Iron Ore, Manganese Ore and allied
commodities, including but not limited to manganese ore, iron ore, bauxite, limestone,
and other metallic and non-metallic minerals and its by products deposits, goods,
substances & materials, including sands, stones, and soils, chalk, clay, china clay,
betonies, broils, calcite and coal, lignite, rockphoscate, brimstone, brine, bauxite,
limestone, precious and other stones, iron, aluminum, titanium, vanadium, mica,
apalite, chrome, copper, gypsum, rutile, sulphate, tin, zinc, zircon, tungsten, silicon,
brass, and other allied materials, by products, mixtures, blends, residues & substances,
and to do all incidental acts and things necessary for the attainment of the objects.

5. *To search, survey, discover, acquire by concession, grant, purchase, barter, lease,
license, degrees & tenders the allotment or otherwise of land or water area from
government, semi-government, local authorities, private bodies, corporations and
other persons, such rights, powers, and privileges whatsoever for obtaining mines,
open cast mineés, bucket mines, quarries, deposits, etc. for the accomplishment of the
above objects.

6. *To purchase or otherwise acquire and to sell, dispose of and deal with mines and
mining rights and property supposed to contain mineral oil or precious stones of all
kinds and undertakings connected therewith and to buy, sell, refine, manipulate and
deal in minerals of all kinds. To carry on any business relating to the winning and
working of minerals, the production and working of metals, and the production,
manufacture, and preparation of any other materials which may be usefully or
conveniently combined with the engineering or manufacturing business of the




Company, or any contract undertaken by the Company, and either for the purpose
only of such contracts or as an independent business. To undertake and execute any
contracts for works involving the supply or use of any machinery and to carry out any
ancillary or other works comprised in such contracts.

5. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no such orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company’s operations in future.

The holding company A-One Steels India Limited is converted from Private Limited to Public Limited
w.e.f. 23.12.2024. hence, being a subsidiary of the Holding Public Limited, company is deemed public
company from 23.12.2024 and complied all the necessary provisions under companies Act 2013 and all
other applicable provisions to the extent possible.

6. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION EACH OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Associates and Joint Venture, Subsidiary Companies.

7. DIVIDEND:
Your Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year ending 31t March, 2025.

8. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Company retained loss of Rs. 2740.53 Lakhs in the retained earnings.

9. SHARE CAPITAL:

The Board provides following disclosure pertaining to Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rule, 2014:

SL. No. | particulars Disclosure
1. Issue of Equity shares with differential rights Nil
2. Issue of Sweat Equity shares Nil
3. Issue of employee stock option Nil
4. Provision of money by company for purchase of its own
shares by trustees for the benefit of employees Nil




10.

11.

12,

The Authorized Share Capital as on 315t March, 2025 was Rs. 10,00,00,000/- consisting of 1,00,000
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 99,00,000, 0.01% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs. 10/-each and paid up share capital of the company was Rs. 9,95,00,000/- consisting of 50,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 99,00,000, 0.01% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs, 10/- each.

During the year there is no change in the capital structure, the Company has not issued any shares or
convertible instruments.

On 25" June 2024 Company has allotted 6000 Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible, unlisted
Debentures at nominal value of Rs.1,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs.60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty

Crores only) on private placement basis.
DEPOSITS:
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act,

2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As per Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company shall place a copy of the annual return
on the website of the company, if any and the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in the
Board's report. As the company is not having website, the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT

9 is annexed herewith as ” Annexure-1".

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
All the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they meet the criteria prescribed
for independence under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and continue to comply with the Code of Conduct laid down under Schedule IV

of the Act.

The Board has assessed the veracity of the confirmations submitted by the Independent Directors and
thereafter has taken the same on record. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their
status as Independent Directors of the company. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent
Directors are competent, experienced, proficient and possess necessary expertise and integrity to
discharge their duties and functions as Independent Directors. The names of all Independent Directors
are included in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of

Corporate Affairs.




In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors are independent of the management.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval
of Independent Directors of the Company and the Board for approval, if required. The Company has
taken necessary approvals as and when required as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
laws, as the case may be. The details of the transactions entered into, at arms length basis and in the
ordinary course of business, with the Related Parties are stated in the notes to accounts, and also in
Form AOC-2 as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 which is annexed herewith “ Annexure-11".

14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable.

15. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, evaluation of

performance of every Director, Board and the Chairman was carried out by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The Chairman of the respective committees reviewed the performance of the
respective committees. The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole,
Committees thereof and Chairman of the Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors
through a separate meeting of the Independent Directors. Evaluation of Independent Directors was
carried out by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated. The evaluation was
carried out on the basis of response of the Directors to a structured questionnaire covering various
aspects of Board performance such as Board composition and expertise, Board oversight, strategy and
direction, Corporate Governance and Board administration and inputs shared by the Directors at the

meeting.

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

SL. PARTICULARS DISCLOSURE

No.

(A) Conservation of Energy: The Energy conservation continues to receive
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation | priority attention at all levels. All efforts are
of energy made to conserve and optimize use of energy

with continuous monitoring, improvement in
(ii) The steps taken by the company for | maintenance through improved operational
utilizing alternate sources of energy techniques.




(iii) The capital investment on energy
conservation equipments

(B)

Technology Absorption:

(i) The efforts made towards technology
absorption;

(ii) The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution.

(iif) In case of imported technology
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial

year).

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research
and Development.

Updation of Technology is a Continuous
process; efforts are continuously made to
develop new products required in the
Company’s activities.

NA

Nil

Nil

17. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Particulars

As on 31.03.2025

As on 31.03.2024

Foreign Exchange Earning

Foreign Exchange Outgo

18. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board comprises following Directors:

SI. No. Name of the Director Designation

01. Sandeep Kumar Director

02. Sunil Jallan Director

03 Kamaldeep Singh Independent Director
04 Sukanya Acharya Independent Director

Following changes in composition of directors done during the year:

S1 No Name of Director Designation Nature of Charge | Date of Change
01 Manoj Kumar Director Resignation 23.12.2024
02 Kamaldeep Singh Independent Appointment 23.12.2024
Director
03 Sunil Jallan Director Change in | 16.01.2025
designation  from




Executive to Non-
Executive
04 Sukanya Acharya Independent Appointment 16.01.2025
Director
05 Kamaldeep Singh Independent Change in | 31.03.2025
Director designation
06 Sukanya Acharya Independent Change in | 31.03.2025
| Director designation

Mr. Sandeep Kumar the director liable to be retiring by rotation and being eligible offers himself for the

re-appointment.

Details regarding the appointment of director as the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (“S5-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and

approved by the Central Government are provided as part of notice to the AGM.

Details of Remuneration paid to Directors:

SI No Name of the Director Remuneration

Details of Sitting Fees paid to Independent Directors:

S1 No Name of the Independent Director Sitting Fees
01 Kamaldeep Singh Rs. 60,000/-
02 Sukanya Acharya Rs. 60,000/-

19. COMPANY’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is to ensure that the remuneration is in line
with best comparable market practices, as well as competitive vis-a-vis that of comparable companies
both in India and other international markets, which will have a motivating effect to act as a driving force
to ensure long term availability of talent and also retention of the best talents. A brief description about
the Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration,
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other
related matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.



20. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Company places utmost importance on its fiduciary role as a guardian of stakeholders’ interest and

strives to achieve a mutually aligned objective of value and wealth creation for all interested parties. The

Board and the Management humbly acknowledges this role and continues to propagate this belief

through all layers of the organization to create an environment of accountability and trust. These

responsibilities continue to be the focus of its attention through the tumultuous ride along the path of

expansion, ensuring the highest standards of ethics and integrity in all its business dealings while

avoiding potential conflicts of interest. The result of this is a corporate structure which serves its ever

expanding business needs while maintaining transparency and adherence to the above stated beliefs.

21. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

During the Financial year 2024-25, there were 13 Board Meetings held on following dates:

S1 No Date of Total Number of directors Attendance
meeting associated as on the date of meeting
Number of directors % of
attended attendance
1 20.05.2024 03 03 100
2 12.06.2024 03 02 66.67
3 12.06.2024 03 02 66.67
4 25.06.2024 03 02 66.67
5 01.07.2024 03 02 66.67
6 20.07.2024 03 02 66.67
Z 28.08.2024 03 02 66.67
8 25.10.2024 03 02 66.67
9 04.12.2024 03 02 66.67
10 23.12.2024 03 02 66.67
11 16.01.2025 03 02 66.67
12 22.03.2025 04 04 100
13 25.03.2025 04 03 75
During the financial year following Committees meeting held on the following dates:
Type of | Date of | Total Number of | Attendance
committee meeting members associated as
on the date of meeting | Number of members | % of
Attended attendance
03 100
Audit Committee | 22/03/2025 | 03
Nomination and 03 100
Remuneration 22/03/2025 | 03
Committee




04 100
| POSH Committee | 13/01/2025 | 04
Risk 03 100
Management 31/03/2025 | 03
Committee

22. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has not given loans, guarantees under Section 186 of the companies Act, 2013 during the

year under review. However, company made investment in the below company:

SINo | Name of the Company Nature of | Number of shares | Investment
Transactions be allotted Amount (in
Lakhs)
01 FPEL Celestial Private Limited | Investment 19,60,000 Rs. 196.00 Lakhs

23. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to the material departures;

The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
Company for the year under review.

The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

24, COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. The Company has
followed the applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the ICSI.




25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company. In today’s challenging and
competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of

the Company are imperative.

The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence,
Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. It also includes exchange risk as the

transactions takes place among foreign countries.

Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a

matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

The management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training at
periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the

principle of rewarding performance.

REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company is covered under the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However,
the remuneration policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of remuneration according to
qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The employees who
are engaged in clerical, administrative and professional services are suitably remunerated according to

the industry norms.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for
directors and employees in confirmation with Section 177 (9) of the companies act 2013 read with Rule
7(1)(b) of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules 2014 to report concerns about

unethical behaviour.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:




The Company has in place a prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this
policy.

During the year 2024-25, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual harassment.
The details of the sexual harassment cases received, disposed of and pending are given below:-

Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual
Harassment Cases | Harassment cases | Harassment cases | Harassment cases
pending in the | received during the | disposed off during | pending at the end of
beginning of  the | Financial year2024-25 |the Financial year | Financial year 2024-25

Financial Year 2024-25
i.e.01.04.2024
0 0 0 0

30. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has laid down a system of internal financial controls with reference to its financial
statements. The integrity and reliability of the internal control systems are achieved through clear policies
and procedures, process automation, training and development of employees, and an organisation
structure that segregates responsibilities. These controls are reviewed and tested by the internal audit
team to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the preparation of reliable

financial statements.

The internal financial controls of the Company with respect to the financial statements are adequate and
are operating effectively.

All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is
following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining books of accounts and

reporting financial statements.

31. DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS PER SECTION 148(1):

The Company is maintaining the books of accounts and other related records as per rules

prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

32. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:




During the year under review, the Company had no employees who earned remuneration beyond the

limits specified under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of top 10 employees of the Company is

detailed as under:

Sl| Name Designat | Relati | qualificat | the age Nature Date of | the Remunera
N| of the | ion on ions and | of such | of Employ | percent | tion (Per
o | Employ with | experienc | employ | Employ | ment age of | Month)
ee any e of the | eeg ment equity | (Amount
direct | employee shares | in Rs.)
or of |; held by
the the
compa employ
ny ee in
the
compan
¥
1 | Anand | VP pipes | NA qualificat
Mohan | and ions -
2 Permane | 21-08-
Dixit Tubes MBA ) 45 5 2023 NA 1,63,200
Sales experienc
e-20 years
NA qualificat
Neeraj Ceneral o ) Permane | 01.10.202
3 Garg Manager Ty & nt 4 A 1,00,000
experienc
e-5 years
Rakesh NA f;ualificat
3 | Kumar | Manager ions -!th 51 Permane | 01-05- NA
Periwal experienc nt 2025 1,00,000
e-27 years
NA qualificat
. ASST. ions -B-
Rujhan Permane | 02-07-
4 | saxena E%ANAG S o nt 2024 A 80,000
experienc
e-14 years
VIVEK NA ni:;ot:‘a:ificat
5 g‘;ﬂAD Manager Dipl:)fna 35 :ttermane %2[.]1& NA 65,000
SINGH SIS
e-18 years
NA qualificat
ions -
6 S Rajpal | Assistant Intermedi a8 Permane | 01-12- NA
Singh Manager ate nt 2024 65,000
experienc
e-20 years
7 | Ravinde | Annealin | NA qualificat | 33 Permane | 01-08- NA




r g ions -B.A nt 2023 63,000
Foreman experienc
e-15 years
NA qualificat
ions -
8 Anil Shift Hight 46 Permane | 01-05- NA
Kumar | Incharge School nt 2022 56,000
experienc
e-19 years
NA qualificat
Vikash : ions .
gl Wt Mill SSLC 39 Permane | 16-01- NA
: Foreman E nt 2025 55,000
Singh experienc
e-14 years
NA qualificat
10 Ajeet nMCaembena ISETC o 30 Permane | 01.10.202 NA
Saini ; nt 4 50,000
Foreman experienc
e-12 years
33. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE

34.

35.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2013 as on 31st March, 2025.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF:

As on 31st March 2025, the Company did not entered transaction for One Time Settlement of

loan/borrowings from Bank and obtaining valuation report on the same.

COMPLIANCE TO THE PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFITS ACT, 1961:

The company has complied with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

36.

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT:

Holding company of the company is in the process of IPO and being subsidiary of Holding public

company, The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for all its Senior Management Personnel and

Directors and the same is affirmed by all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel as
required under Regulation 34 read with Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A declaration signed by Mr. Sandeep Kumar, Director of the




Company affirming the compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year

2024-25 has been annexed as part of this Report.

37. AUDITORS:

i)

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Singhi & Co. (FRN: 302049E), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company at the
EGM held on 25/10/2024 to fill the casual vacancy caused by resignation of M/s. R. Singhvi &
Associates (FRN: 03870S), Chartered Accountants, existing Statutory Auditors, to hold office until

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to conduct the statutory audit for the
financial year 2024-25. Accordingly, the Board proposed to re-appoint them for next 5 years.

AUDITOR’S REPORT: The Auditors’ have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 31s

March 2024 and hence, do not call for any comments from the management under Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013.Further, the Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified
under Section 143(12) of the Act.

Following are reported in the Auditors report:

1. Point No 2 (iv)(j) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. However, we found that the audit trail at the database level is editable.
Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the entire period from April 1, 2023 except that the audit
trail retention at the database level is available only from April 12, 2023, and at the application
level only from October 2023.

Management Reply: audit trail at the database level is editable because initially software was in
the implementation stage. Hence, for short period it was editable. As on the date audit trial is in
uneditable version.

The marginal delay was due to the reason that as this is being the first year of implementation
due to which the integration and upgradation of the new software for audit trail with the existing
accounting software takes some time for proper implementation. The same is now properly
implemented and integrated. Hence, maintenance of Audit Trail remains duly compiled and

implemented by all operational units as on date.



2. Point No ii(b) of Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report
The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate
from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current
assets of the Company. The discrepancies, if any, between the books of accounts and the
quarterly return/statements filed with such bank and financial institutions have been disclosed
below:

Quarter Aggregat | Amount Amount as | Amount as | Amount of | Reasons for
e utilized per books | reported in | difference | material
working | during  the | of account | the discrepancies
capital quarter quarterly
limits return/
sanction statement
ed
2,000.00

June 2024 1,763.81 7,507.71 7.572.47 (64.76) Refer Notes

September Refer Notes

2024 2,000.00 | 1,895.91 9,232.40 9,334.53 (102.13)

December Refer Notes

2024 2,000.00 | 1,815.16 7,399.42 7,446.14 (46.72)

March 2025 Refer Notes

2,000.00 | 1,001.85 3,739.15 3.613.11 126.04
Management Representation:
(i) The differences are on account of statement filed with the banks prepared based on
provisional basis and regrouping of various ledgers.
(ii) While arriving the drawing power the creditors are adjusted from bank balances available as
on respective quarters and net debtors submitted to bank after excluding more than 90 days.
(iii) The Company has a practice of submitting net position of debtors, advances to suppliers,
inventory and deducting creditors, advance from customers. Therefore for comparing with the
books of accounts the same practice has been followed to arrive at the net position though there
is a change in classification in the financial statements.
3. In Point no xvii of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report:

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the company
has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs.1,746.68 lakhs during the financial year and incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year amounting Rs.754.94 lakhs.

Management Representation:

Increase in cost of materials and other expenses like electricity charges and labour cost, there is a

cash losses during financial years. Company is taking necessary action for the same.



ii)

iii)

iv)

38.

INTERNAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 M/s. Vishnu Daya & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:
008456N /S200092) were appointed as Internal Auditor of the company.

Further, Internal Auditor have not made any qualification in their report.

COST AUDITOR:
The Board has approved the appointment of M/s. Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN:

100509) as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26 at a remuneration Rs.
40,000 plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors in connection
with the Cost Audit.

The Board of Directors of the company proposes the ratification of remuneration of M/s.
Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN: 100509) for the Financial Year 2025-26 at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

COST AUDIT REPORT: The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 31st
March 2025.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
(S Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership No. F12205 and COP No.
18667), as Secretarial Auditor of the company for F.Y 2024-25 and received the report from them.

The Board proposed to appoint CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in Practice
(Membership No. F12205 and COP No. 18667), as Secretarial Auditor of the company for next
Financial Year F.Y 2025-26.

The Report of the secretarial audit as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is

annexed as Annexure-1V.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12)

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OTHER THAN THOSE REPORTABLE TO CENTRAL

GOVERNMENT

Not applicable.
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Annexure-|

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management &

Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

) CIN U27200KA2020PTC139870

2 Registration Date 16/10/2020

3. Name of the Company A-ONE GOLD PIPES AND TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

4. Category/Sub-category | Company Limited by shares/Indian Non-Government
of the Company Company

5 Address of the A One House No.326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout,
Registered office Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru - 560092

5(i) | Contact No. 080-45646000

5(ii) | E-mail ID legal@aonesteelgroup.com

6. Whether listed company | No

7. Name, Address & contact | Not Applicable
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: NIL

(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

SL Name and Description of Main NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
No. products / services Product/service company
01 Manufacture of Iron and Steel 2410 NIL%

L

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

SLN| NAME AND ADDRESS OF CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicab
o. | THE COMPANY Subsidiary/ | shares le
Associate held Section
01 | A-One Steels India Limited | U28999KA2012PLC| Holding 100% 2(46)
(Formerly known as A-One Steels | 063439
India Private Limited and A-One
Steel and Alloys Private Limited)

V.
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year Yo
Shareholders the year Chan
De [Physical Total % of Dem | Physical | Total %of | 4 ge
mat Total at Total T
Shares Share t]%e




year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

0.01

b) Central Govt

¢) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

4,99,99

4,99,99

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Sub- Total (A)
(1):-

5,00,00

50,000

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs-
Individuals

b) Other
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/ FI

e) Any other

Sub- Total (A)
(2)--

Total
shareholding
of Promoters
(A)= (A)(1)+
(A)2)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian




ii) Overseas -

b) Individuals z

i) Individual -
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto Rs.
1 lakh

ii) Individual -
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs. 1

lakh

¢) Others -
(specify)

Sub- Total =
(B)(2):-

Total Public -
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held -
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total -
L (A+B+C)

50,000 50,000

100 | 50,00

50,000

100 -

ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

No. Name

SL Shareholder’s

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

% change in
shareholdin

No. % of
of total
Sha | Shares
res of the
| compa
ny

Yoof Shares
ledged /
ncumbere

to total
hares

No. of
Shares

Yo Of
total
Shares of
the
company

Ywof Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total

shares

g during the
year

01.

Sandeep Kumar

01

0.01

0.01

Nil -

02.

A-One Steels India
Limited (Formerly
known as A-One
Steels India Private
Limited and A-One
Steel and Alloys
Private Limited)

49,9
99

99.99

- 49,999

99.99

Nil -

Total

50,0
00

100

- 50,000

100

iii)Changes in Promoters’ Shareholding: NA

[ s1

No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Data wise Increase / Decrease in

Promoters Share

holding during the Year specifying the
reasons

for increase / decrease

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year




No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of
the

company

Reason for

Increase/
Decrease

Date

No. of
Shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of
the
company

iv)Share holding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs): NOT APPLICABLE.

SL Shareholding at the
beginning

of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

% of total
shares of the
company

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of

shares

% of total
shares of
the

company

No. of
shares

At the beginning of the year - - s S

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

1. Allotment

At the end of the year (or on the date of - - X v
separation, if separated during the year)

v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SL. | Shareholding of each Directors Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative

No.

and each Key Managerial
Personnel

of the year

the year

Shareholding during

Sandeep Kumar

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of
shares

Y% of total
shares of
the
company

At the beginning of the year

01

0.01

01

0.01

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer
/ bonus/ sweat equity etc.):-

At the end of the year

0.01

0.01

V) INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

(Amount in Lakhs)

esxecc;::;?n;om Unsecured Depoaits Total

deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the - s =
financial year
i) Principal Amount 4858.73 2638.71 - 7497.44
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - -




Total (i+ii+iii)

4858.73

2638.81

7497.44

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

» Addition

2310.23

1435.17

s Reduction

Net Change

2310.23

1435.17

37454

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

7168.96

4073.88

11242.84

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

7168.96

4073.88

11242.84

VL. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS, MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS, AND
JOR MANAGER:NIL

Sl
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Director/MD/WTD/Manager

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit

- others, specify

Others, (Sitting Fees)

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:NIL

SL
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission




Others, Remuneration

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial -
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act -

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD: NIL

SL. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CEO Company | CFO Total
Secretary
1 Gross salary - - - -
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) - - - -
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, - - - -
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - - - -
- as % of profit - - - -
others, specify... - - - -
5 Others, please specify - = - =
Total - - - -
VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:NIL
Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal
Companies Description | Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ | made,
Act Punishment/ COURT] if any (give
Compounding Details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - . - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding




On Behalf of the Board
- FOR A-ONE GOLD PIPES AND TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

DINT02150846

Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore



(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

FORM NO. AOC -2

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Annexure-ll

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arms length transactions under fourth proviso thereto

Name of the Company:

Details of contracts or arrangements or fransactions not at Arm's length basis. : NA

*Number of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis:0

Z™wm

Corporat
e identity
number
(CIN) or
foreign
company
registratio
n number
(FCRN) or
Limited
Liability
Partnershi
2]
number
(LLPIN) or
Foreign
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Annexure-ll

Number of material contracts or arangements or transactions at Arm's length basis: 03

| Corporat | Name (s) Nature of Nature of Duratio | Salient terms of | Date | Amou
No | e identity | of the relationship | contracts/ar | of | the contracts or | of nt
number related rangements | o arrangements appr | paid
(CIN) or party /transaction sonthg | W transaction oval | as
foreign including the by adva
company cts/am | alve, if any the [ nces,
registratio angem Boar | if any
n number ents/ir d
(FCRN) or ansact
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Liability
Partnershi
p
number
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Foreign
Limited
Liability
Partnershi
P
number
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or
Permane
nt
Account
Number
(PAN)/Pa
ssport for
individual
s or any
other
registratio
n number
01 | U28999KA | A-One Holding Lease As per | As per lease 20.02 | Nil
2012PLCO | Steels India | company Services lease agreement 2024
63439 Limited Mr. Sunil agreem
(Formerly Jallan and ent
known As | Mr. Purchase and | On As mutually
A-One Sandeep sale of goods | need agreed
Steels India | Kumar and basis
P."V.o fe Mr. Purchase and | On As mutually
Limited Kamaldeep ks o sasd ol
And A-One | Singh- - , e
= CWIP/PPE basis
Steel And Director
Alloys interested londinnand | O (RS
Private 8 y
Limited) :E;:;img il
Freight On As mutually
Income need agreed

basis




Annexure-|l

02 | CNKPR4 | Bellary Ms. Asha Purchase and | On As mutually 20.02 | Nil

847R Tubes Rani- sale of Goods | need agreed 2024
Corporatio | proprietor basis
" who is wife

of Mr.
Manoj
Kumar
Director of
the holding
company
(Resigned
on
12.06.2024)

03 | U74999K | Vanya Mr. Sunil Sale of Goods | On As mutually 20.02 | Nil
A2005 Steels Jallan and need agreed 2024
PTC1255 | Private Mr. basis
78 Limited Sandeep

Kumar and
Mr. Purchaseof | On As mutually
Kamaldeep | CWIP/PPE | need | agreed
Singh- basis
Director
interested
On Behalf of the Board
FOR A-ONE GOLD PIPES AND TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
(SM
DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045
Date: 01.08.2025

Place: Bangalore
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31% March 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31% March 2025

To,

The Members,

A-ONE GOLD PIPES AND TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870)

A One House No.326, Front Portion, First Floor,
CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar,
Bengaluru, Karnataka, India-560092

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by A-ONE GOLD PIPES AND TUBES PRIVATE
LIMITED (CIN: U27200KA2020PTC139870) (hereinafter referred as “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion

thereon.

Based on my verification of the A-One Gold Pipes And Tubes Private Limited (the Company’s)
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
- o _ i--::

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25
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opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31%
March 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited for the financial year ended on

315 March 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under (in so far as they

are made applicable);

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there

under; (Not applicable)

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to

the extent applicable;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there

under; (Not Applicable)

(v) | further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with other Acts, Laws,

Policies and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company.

(vi)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

Secretarial AuditReport FY2024-25
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; (Not Applicable)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; (Not Applicable)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

1998; (Not Applicable)

(i) All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the
Company, a list of which has been provided by the management. The examination
and reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate

systems and processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws.

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024~25
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| have also examined compliance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General

Meetings.

| have not examined compliance by the Company relating to the applicable financial
laws, such as direct and indirect tax laws including cost records, since the same have
been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other designated

professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the

provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.
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Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are

captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions

of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period the company has following events /
actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above:
I. Issue of debentures:

During the audit period, the Company has issued and allotted 6000 (Six
Thousand) INR denominated, secured, redeemable, non-convertible, unlisted
debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) each
at par, in one or more series/tranches, aggregating up to Rs.60,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Sixty Crore only) (Debentures) on 12" June 2024 on private placement
basis in accordance with the provisions of Section 42 and Section 71 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules made thereunder.

Il. Change in Status Company from Private to Deemed Public:

The holding company, A-One Steel India Limited, has converted from a private

limited company to a public limited company. The conversion was duly
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approved by the shareholders, and the Registrar of Companies has issued a
fresh Certificate of Incorporation reflecting the change on 23" December 2024.
Accordingly, with effect from 23" December 2024, the company is deemed to

be a public company under the applicable provisions of law.

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS: 12205; CP No.18667

Peer Review Cert.No.:2739/2022
UDIN No: F012205G000912005

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 01-08-2025

Note: Para wise details of the Audit finding, if necessary, may be placed as annexure

to the report.
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ANNEXURE
To,

A-ONE GOLD PIPES AND TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

Bengaluru

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on

my audit.

(2) | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, followed provide a reasonable basis for

my opinion.

(3) 1 have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books

of Accounts of the Company.

(4) Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited

to the verification of procedures on test basis.
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(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management is conducted

the affairs of the Company.

iy

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS: 12205; CP No.18667
Peer Review Cert.No.: 2739/2022
UDIN No: F012205G000912005
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 01-08-2025
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